
 

  B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 
Regd. Office: H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave,  

Near MCD Park New Delhi – 110092 

Ph.: 011-42141100, 011-30251171, sbj@anandpulp.com 
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September 06, 2024 

To, 

Department of Corporate Services 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001  

 

Scrip Code : 531647 

 

Subject : Intimation under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – Integrated Annual Report for the Financial 

Year 2023-24 including Notice of 30th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 

Company”. 

Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

 

With reference to the captioned subject, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report of B J Duplex 

Boards Limited, the Company for the financial year 2023-24 including the Notice of 30th Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. 

 

The Company has fixed Monday, September 23, 2024 as the “Cut-off Date” for the purpose of 

determining the Members eligible to vote through remote e-voting on the Resolutions set forth in the 

Notice of the AGM or to attend the AGM and cast their vote thereat.  

 

Notice of AGM along with Annual Report of the Company, referred above, is being dispatched to the 

Shareholders of the Company via permitted mode(s) and has also been uploaded on the Website of the 

Company & BSE Limited (the Stock Exchange). 

 

This is for your information & records.  

 

Thanking you, 

 

Yours Faithfully, 

For B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

 

 

Divya Mittal  

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

Encl: As above 
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NOTICE OF THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

To, 

The Member(s) 

B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of B J Duplex Boards 

Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, the 30th day of September 2024, at 2:00 PM (IST) at New 

Box Makers, I-144, Sector-2, Bawana Industrial Area, Delhi – 110039, India, to transact the following 

business(es) as set out herein: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

Item no. 1: To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”  

 

Item no. 2: Appointment of Director liable to retire by rotation. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (DIN: 03267887), Director, who retires by rotation at 

this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 

appointed as a Director of the Company.”  

 

Item no. 3: To re-appoint M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates (Firm Reg. No. 016534N) Chartered 

Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, and to fix their remuneration 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to sections 139, 141, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendations 

of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates (Firm 

Reg. No. 016534N), Chartered Accountants, Delhi , who being eligible, be and are hereby re-appointed as 

the Statutory Auditors who shall hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from 

the conclusion of the ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 35th Annual General 
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Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration and terms and conditions as mutually agreed between the 

board and statutory auditor” 

 

“RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions, the Board of Directors of 

the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee 

constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorised by the Board/ Committee in this regard) be and are 

hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its 

absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose and with power on behalf of the Company 

to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to implementation of the aforesaid 

resolution including but not limited to determination of roles and responsibilities/ scope of work of the 

Statutory Auditors, negotiating, finalising, amending, signing, delivering, executing, the terms of 

appointment including any contracts or documents in this regard and to alter and vary the terms and 

conditions of remuneration arising out of increase in scope of work, amendment in Accounting Standards 

or regulations and such other requirements resulting in the change in scope of work, etc. and necessary 

filings with appropriate authorities without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

members of the Company. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

 

Item no. 4: Re-appointment of Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 08438613) as an Independent Director of the 

Company 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 152, and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV of the Act 

and regulation 16(1)(b), 17(1A) and regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015”) (including any statutory 

modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) or any other applicable law and based 

on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the approval of Board of 

Directors, Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 08438613), be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, with effect from September 30, 2024 to 

hold office for second term of Five (5) consecutive years i.e. up to September 29, 2029.  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 

“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s) 

authorised by the Board/ Committee in this regard) be and are hereby authorised on behalf of the Company 

to do all acts, deeds and things and take all steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to 

the above resolution.” 
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Place: Delhi 

Date: September 06, 2024 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

B J Duplex Boards Limited 

Sd/- 

Divya Mittal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY /PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT OF 

PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED (IF 

APPLICABLE) AND SIGNED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 

COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING. 

Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate 

resolution/authority, as applicable. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of 

members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (Ten Percent) of the total 

share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% (Ten Percent) of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not 

act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The appointment of proxy shall be in the Form No. MGT‐11, 

which is annexed herewith. 

 

The proxy holder shall prove his / her identity at the time of attending the Meeting. When a member appoints a 

proxy and both the member and proxy attend the Meeting, the proxy stands automatically revoked. 

 

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending 

with the conclusion of meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged during the business 

hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days’ notice in writing is given to the Company. 

 

2. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 

entitled to vote. 

 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the AGM pursuant to section 

113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to submit a certified true copy of the relevant Board 

Resolution/Power of Attorney together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative 

to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM or through email at sbj@anandpulp.com. 

 

4. As required by Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the relevant details of the Re-appointment of Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 08438613) as an Independent 

Director of the Company as Annexure I and details of reappointment of Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (DIN: 

03267887) as Director under Item No. 2 of the Notice, who retires by rotation at this Annual General are annexed 

as Annexure II. 

 

5. Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination: 

 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ MIRSD/ MIRSD-PoD-1/ P/ CIR /2023/ 37 dated 16.03.2023 in supersession of 

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November 2021 has instructed 

mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com
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to mandatorily furnish PAN, KYC details and Nomination by holders of physical securities. In other words, it shall 

be mandatory for all holders of physical securities in listed companies to furnish PAN, Nomination, Contact details, 

Bank A/c details and Specimen signature for their corresponding folio numbers. 

 

Accordingly, it is once again reiterated that it is mandatory for all holders and claimants of physical securities to 

furnish PAN details to RTA. 

 

Pursuant to above SEBI circular, the shareholders are requested to furnish valid PAN, email address, mobile 

number, Bank account details and nomination details immediately in the below mentioned forms to the RTA: 

 

Sr. No. Form Purpose 

(i) Form ISR-1 To register/update PAN, KYC details 

(ii) Form ISR-2 To Confirm Signature of securities holder by the Bank 

(iii) Form ISR-3 Declaration Form for opting out of Nomination 

(iv) Form SH-13 Nomination Form 

(v) Form SH-14 Cancellation or Variation of Nomination (if any) 

 

All above Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and SH-14 are available on our website www.bjduplexboard.com. 

Folios wherein any one of the cited details/documents (i.e. PAN, KYC, Bank Details and Nomination) are not 

available with us, on or after October 1, 2023, shall be frozen as per the aforesaid SEBI circular. 

 

In view of the above, we request the shareholders to submit the duly filled-in Investor Service Request forms along 

with the supporting documents to Bank’s RTA at below address at the earliest. 

 

Freezing of Folios without PAN, KYC details and Nomination 

 

(i) The folios wherein any one of the cited document/details as in para above are not available on or after October 

1, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. 

(ii) The security holder(s) whose folio(s) have been frozen shall be eligible: 

(a) to lodge grievance or avail any service request from the RTA only after furnishing the complete 

documents/details as mentioned in para above. 

(b) for any payment including dividend, interest or redemption payment in respect of such frozen folios, only 

through electronic mode with effect from April 1, 2024. An intimation shall be sent by the Company to 

the security holder that such payment is due and shall be made electronically only upon complying with 

the requirements stated in para 4 of this Circular. 

(iii) Frozen folios shall be referred by the RTA / listed company to the administering authority under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and/ or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, if they continue to 

remain frozen as on December 31, 2025. 

(iv) The RTA shall revert the frozen folios to normal status upon receipt of all the Documents/details as in para 

above. 

 

In case of any query / assistance, members are requested to contact our RTA, Beetal Financial & Computer Services 

Private Limited, at Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Data Harsukdas 

Mandir. New Delhi – 110062, India (Phone No. 011 - 29961284; Email: beetalrta@gmail.com)  

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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Holding of shares in Electronic Form  

 

In respect of shareholders who hold shares in the dematerialized form and wish to update their PAN, KYC, Bank 

Details and Nomination are requested to contact their respective Depository Participants. 

 

6. Members may please note that the SEBI vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022, has mandated for listed 

companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing the service requests for (a) issue of 

duplicate securities certificate; (b) claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; (c) Renewal / Exchange of 

securities certificate; (d) Endorsement; (e) Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate; (f) Consolidation of 

securities certificates/folios; (h) Transmission, and (i) Transposition. 

 

Member are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form(s) as applicable to 

them, in the format available on the website of the Company as well as our RTA. The RTA after verification of 

such request shall issue a ‘Letter of Confirmation’ in lieu of physical securities certificate(s), and the concerned 

shareholders would be required to dematerialise their shares within 120 days from the date of issuance of ‘Letter 

of Confirmation’. 

 

Members holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are requested to kindly get their equity shares 

converted into demat/electronic form to get inherent benefits of dematerialization and also considering that 

physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance of equity shares in physical form have been disallowed by SEBI. 

 

7. Members having any question on Financial Statements or on any Agenda item proposed in the notice of AGM 

are requested to send their queries at least seven days prior at the date of AGM of the company at its registered 

office address or through email at sbj@anandpulp.com to enable the company to collect the relevant information. 

 

8. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of the Company may nominate a person on whom 

the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Members desirous of availing this facility may 

submit nomination in prescribed Form SH-13 (available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.bjduplexboard.com) to the Company/RTA in case shares are held in physical form and to their respective 

depository participant, if held in electronic form.  

 

9. This Notice is being sent to all the members whose name appears as on Friday, August 30, 2024, in the Register 

of Members or beneficial owner as received from M/s Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private Limited, 

the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company or the Depositories, respectively. 

 

10. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the closing time of Monday, September 23, 2024, being the cut‐off date. Members are eligible 

to cast vote electronically only if they are holding shares as on that date. A person who is not a member as on 

the cut-off date shall treat this notice for information purpose only. All the members as on the cut-off date as 

well as date of AGM shall have right to attend the AGM. 

 

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 

of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, 

mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com
http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at 

the AGM. 

 

12. All relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, as well as Annual Reports are open for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, during the office hours on all working days up to the date 

of AGM. 

 

13. Electronic copy of the notice and the annual report for the year 2023-24 is being sent to members whose email 

addresses are registered with the Company/ depository participants for communication purpose unless any 

member has requested for a hard copy of the same. The members who have not registered their email addresses, 

physical copies of the same are being sent in the permitted mode. 

 

14. Member(s) may also note that the Notice of the 30th AGM and the Annual Report for Financial Year 2023-24 

are also available on the website of the Company at www.bjduplexboard.com, on the website of Stock Exchange 

i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.  

 

15. Attendance slip and the route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 30th AGM is enclosed as per the 

requirements of Secretarial Standard-2 of “General Meetings”. 

 

16. Members are requested to bring the Annual Report for their reference at the meeting. Admission Slip duly filled 

in shall be handed over at the entrance to the meeting hall, and duly signed in accordance with their specimen 

signature(s) registered with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). 

 

17. Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI 

and the MCA circular, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed at the Meeting. 

 

18. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 

order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, for 

consolidation into single folio. 

 

19. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of 

any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. 

 

Members are also advised to not leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 

should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 

20. The route map of the Venue of the Meeting is also hosted along with the Notice on the website of the Company 

i.e., www.bjduplexboard.com. 

  

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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21. E-VOTING PROCESS  

 

I. In Compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide Members a facility to exercise their right 

electronically through electronic voting service facility arranged by National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL). The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at AGM and members attending 

the AGM, who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but 

shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The instructions for e-voting are annexed to the notice. 

 

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 

meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 

through ballot paper. 

 

III. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend and participate in 

the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote. 

 

IV. Mr. Parveen Rastogi, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No. 26582), has consented to act as Scrutinizer   

 

V. E-voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024, (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on Sunday, September 

29, 2024, (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by 

the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 

The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting given 

hereinafter: 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

  

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
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Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 

e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 

which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 

to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 

is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat 

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 

experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 

New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & 

password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 

to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 

the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 

evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 

or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

1800 22 55 33 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 
Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 

then your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 

company 

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 

then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 

cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 

enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 

from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 

The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 

client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 

contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 

and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-

Voting system of NSDL.  

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting System? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 

and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to sbj@anandpulp.com.  

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned 

copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to sbj@anandpulp.com. If you 

are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 

explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 

number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
www.evoting.nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com;%20admin@anandpulp.com
mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com;%20admin@anandpulp.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Other Important Instructions 

General Guidelines for Shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 

the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

rastogifcs3@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter 

etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 

key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 

the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 

user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 

4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or send a request to Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

4. If any member has any problem/ query regarding e-voting as well as AGM, then he/she may contact the 

following person: 

Name: Ms. Divya Mittal 

Designation: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Address: H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park New Delhi – 110092 

E-mail id: sbj@anandpulp.com 

Phone No.: 011-42141100 

5. The member can also update your mobile number and e-mail Id in the user profile details of the folio which 

may be used for sending future communications(s). 

 

22. VOTING THROUGH BALLOT PAPER: 

 

Members who have not exercised the option of Remote E-voting shall be entitled to participate and vote at the 

venue of the AGM on the date of AGM. The voting at the venue of the AGM shall be done through the Ballot 

Papers and Members attending the AGM shall be able to exercise their voting right at the meeting through Ballot 

Papers. After the agenda items have been discussed, the Chairman will instruct the scrutinizer to initiate the process 

of voting on all resolutions through Ballot Papers. The Ballot Papers will be issued to the Shareholders/Proxy 

holders/ Authorised Representatives present at the AGM. The shareholder may exercise their right of vote by tick 

marking as (√) against ‘FOR’ and ‘AGAINST’ as his/her choice may be, on the agenda item in the Ballot Paper 

and drop the same in the Ballot Box(es) kept at the meeting hall for this purpose. 

 

In such an event, votes cast under Poll taken together with the votes cast through remote e-voting shall be counted 

for the purpose of passing of resolution(s). 

 

Any Member, who has already exercised his votes through Remote e-voting, may attend the Meeting but is 

prohibited to vote at the Meeting and his vote, if any, cast at the Meeting shall be treated as invalid. 

 

rastogifcs3@gmail.com
evoting@nsdl.co.in
www.evoting.nsdl.com%20
www.evoting.nsdl.com%20
evoting@nsdl.co.in%20
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23.   General Instructions / information for members for voting on the Resolutions: 

 

i. Facility of voting through Ballot paper shall be made available at the meeting. Members attending the 

meeting, who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 

meeting. 

 

ii. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but 

shall not be entitled to vote again at the AGM. 

 

iii. The voting rights of the shareholders (for voting through remote e-voting or by Ballot paper at the Meeting) 

shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on Cut-off Date. A 

person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial owners maintained 

by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting as well as 

voting at the AGM. 

 

iv. Any person, who acquires shares and become the member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of 

AGM and holding shares as on the closing of cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024, may obtain their 

login/user ID and password for e-voting from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) by sending a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then 

you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your password, 

you may reset your password by using “Forgot user Details / password” option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

v. Mr. Parveen Rastogi, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No. 26582), has been appointed by the Board 

of Directors of the Company to act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process as well as 

voting at AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

24. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting thereafter 

unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two persons not in the employment of 

the Company and shall make, not later than 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 

scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the chairman or  a person so authorized 

by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the voting forthwith.  

 

25. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall  displayed on the Notice Board of the Company at 

its Registered Office and same shall be placed on the Company’s website www.bjduplexboard.com and on the 

website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ immediately after the results are declared by the Chairman or 

a person authorised by him and the same shall also be simultaneously communicated to BSE Limited, the  Stock 

Exchange, where the equity shares of the Company are listed. 

 

26. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the 

Annual General Meeting i.e. Monday, September 30, 2024. 

 

27. Members/Proxies/authorised representative are requested to bring their duly filled Attendance Slip, which is 

annexed to the proxy form along with the copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.  

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

(“THE ACT”) AND THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS (SS-2) ISSUED BY 

THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (“SECRETARIAL STANDARDS”). 

 

Item No. 3:  

 

Statement pursuant to requirements of Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

 

The Company had appointed M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates (Firm Reg. No. 016534N) Chartered Accountants,  as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company at its 25th Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2019, for a period of 

five (5) consecutive financial years to hold the office of Statutory Auditors till the conclusion of 30th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting dated September 06, 2024, evaluated the re-appointment of 

M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates as Statutory Auditors. The Audit Committee considered various parameters like the 

capability of M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates to serve a diverse and complex business landscape as that of the 

Company, audit experience in the Company’s operating segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, 

technical knowledge etc. M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates have also affirmed and confirmed that they meet the 

independence and eligibility criteria as required under applicable law rules and regulations. The Audit Committee 

found M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated with 

the audit of the financial statements of the Company. Therefore, considering the evaluation of the past performance, 

experience and expertise of M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates, the Audit Committee of the Company recommended 

the proposal to re-appoint M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company.  

 

Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and subject to approval of Shareholders, the Board of Directors 

of the Company have approved the re-appointment of M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates, Chartered Accountants as 

the Statutory Auditors of the Company.   

 

The Board of Directors and the Audit committee may approve revisions to annual remuneration of the Statutory 

Auditors for the remaining part of their tenure. The Board of Directors, in consultation with the Audit committee, 

may alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such 

extent as may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors.  

 

Besides the Audit services, the Company would also obtain certifications from the Statutory Auditors under various 

statutory regulations and certifications required by clients, banks, statutory authorities, audit related services and 

other permissible non-audit services as required from time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately 

on mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee.  

 

M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates have given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and have confirmed 

that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 

of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable rules and regulations.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Resolution contained in this Item no. 3 of the accompanying 

Notice as an Ordinary Resolution.  
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is interested in this 

Resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for the approval of Shareholders as an Ordinary resolution.  

 

Item no. 4: 

 

Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 08438613), aged Twenty Nine (29) years was appointed as Non-Executive Independent 

Director of Company with effect from September 30, 2019, and her existing term to hold the office of Director will 

expire on September 30, 2024, therefore, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on September 06, 2024, subject to the approval of Shareholders of 

the Company, have approved the re-appointment of Ms. Vasudha Jain as Non-Executive Independent Director of 

the Company for a period of Five (5) years under section 149, 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).  

 

The Company has received notice under section 160 of the Act from a member signifying and proposing her 

candidature as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. 

 

Ms. Vasudha Jain has given a declaration that she fulfills the conditions as set out in Section 149(6) and Schedule 

IV of the of the Act and “SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015” for being eligible for her re-appointment and has given 

all the requisite disclosures.  

 

Ms. Vasudha Jain has given her consent to act as a Director and confirmed that she is not disqualified from being 

appointed as a Director in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is not debarred from appointment 

by any order of SEBI or any other authority. She is eligible for re-appointment for a further term of Five (5) years.  

 

The Board considers that continuance of her association for a second term of Five (5) years would be of immense 

benefit to the Company considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in respective field, substantial 

contribution and performance evaluation conducted for the first term on following parameters:  

 

a. Active and consistent participation in Board and Committee meetings;  

 

b. Valuable contribution towards strategy impacting Company’s performance; and  

 

c. Experience on critical areas of functions of the organization.  

 

Except Ms. Vasudha Jain, being an appointee, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

or their relatives (to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any) are concerned or interested, financially 

or otherwise, in the resolution no. 4 as set out in the Notice.  

 

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee considers 

the re-appointment of Ms. Vasudha Jain as an Independent Director in the interest of the Company and recommends 

the Special resolution as set out in the Notice for approval of Shareholders.  
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Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) in respect of 

appointment at Item Nos. 4 is under: 

 

Annexure I 

 

Resolution No. Resolution No. 4 (Re-appointment) 

Name of Director (DIN) Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 08438613) 

Brief Resume, Experience and Expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Graduate  

Date of Birth (Age in years) 29/08/1995 (29 Years) 

Qualifications Graduate 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re-

appointment including remuneration  

As detailed in the Explanatory Statement above 

Details of remuneration last drawn Nil 

Date on which first appointed on the Board September 30, 2019 

Details of shareholding in the Company directly or on 

beneficial basis 

Nil 

Relationship with other Directors Manager and Key 

Managerial Personnel (if any) of the Company 

Not related to other Directors, Manager and other Key 

Managerial Personnel  

 

Number of Board meetings attended during the year 6 

Board memberships of other Companies Nil 

Chairperson/Member of the Committee of the Board 

of Directors of Company 

Member of Audit Committee, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 

Chairperson/Member of the Committee of the Board 

of Directors of other Companies 

Nil 

Name of Listed Companies from which resigned 

during last Three (3) years 

Nil 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Director in the 

Company, including shareholding as a beneficial 

owner 

Nil  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

www.bjduplexboard.com 

22 

 

Annexure II 

 

Details of Director retiring by rotation at the AGM:  

 

Name of the Director, DIN Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja, (03267887) 

Age 15/10/1985, 39 Years 

Qualifications  Graduate 

Experience (including expertise in specific functional area) / 

Brief Resume 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja, Graduate and has 

experience in trading of paper business. 

Date of Appointment on the Board of the Company 27/05/2021 

Number of shares held in the Company including as beneficial 

owner 

40,900 

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se Not related to other Directors 

Relationship with Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company 

Not related to Manager and other Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Other Directorship held in other Companies Chiliad Infratech Private Limited 

Member/Chairman of Committee of the Board of other 

Companies on which he is a Director 

Nil 

Listed entities from which the person has resigned in the past 

three years 

Nil 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re-appointment including 

remuneration 

As detailed in Explanatory Statement above 

Details of remuneration last drawn Nil 

Number of Board meetings attended during the year 6 
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Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN: L21090DL1995PLC066281 

Name of the Company: B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

Registered Office: H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park, New Delhi – 110092, 

India 

Name of the Member:  

Registered Address:  

Email ID:  

Folio No./Client ID:*  

DP ID:*  

*Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

 

I/We __________ of _________ Being the member/members of B J Duplex Boards Limited, hereby appoint the 

following as my/our Proxy to attend vote on a poll (for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 30, 2024, at 02:00 P.M. at New Box Makers, I-144, Sector-2, 

Bawana Industrial Area, Delhi – 110039, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 

are indicated below:  

 

1. 1. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

2. 2. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

3. 3. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

** I/We direct my/our Proxy to vote on the Resolutions in the manner as indicated below 

 

S. No. Resolution 
Number of 

Shares held 
For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone 

Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the 

reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 
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2. To appoint Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (DIN: 

03267887), Director, who retires by rotation at 

this Annual General Meeting, and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

3. To re-appoint M/s V.R. Bansals & Associates 

(Firm Reg. No. 016534N) Chartered 

Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company, and to fix their remuneration 

   

SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

4 To Re-appointment of Ms. Vasudha Jain (DIN: 

08438613) as an Independent Director of the 

Company 

   

 

This is optional. Please put a tick mark (√) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If 

a member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy will be entitled 

to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a member wishes to abstain from voting on a particular resolution, 

he/she should write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution. 

 

Signature of Member ________________________ 

 

Signature of Proxy Holders _____________________      

 

 

Signed this ____ day of ______ 2024 

 

 

 

NOTES: 

1. The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered office of the company not less than FORTY-

EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting.  

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.   

3. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for or against column blank against any or all 

resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp of 

Re. 1 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

I/we hereby confirm and record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of B J DUPLEX BOARDS 

LIMITED to be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 02:00 P.M. at New Box Makers, I-144, Sector-2, 

Bawana Industrial Area, Delhi – 110039, India   

 

Folio No.: DP ID*: Client ID*: 

Full name and address of the 

Shareholder/Proxy Holder (in 

block letters) 

  

Joint Holder 1   

Joint Holder 2   

No. of Shares Held   

*Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.   

 

I certify that I am the registered shareholders/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy 

 

Notes:   

1. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for FY 2023-24 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with 

Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email address is registered with the 

Company/Depositary Participant unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Shareholders 

receiving electronic copy and attending the Annual General Meeting can print copy of this Attendance Slip.   

2. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2023-24 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with Attendance 

Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the permitted mode(s) to all members whose email ids are not registered with the 

Company or have requested for a hardcopy. 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members 

B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of the Company on the business and operations of 

the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2024.  

 

Financial Highlights: 

 

The Financial Results for the year under review are summarized as under: 

 

(Rs. In Thousands) 

PARTICULARS F.Y. 2023-24  F.Y. 2022-23  

Total Income  865.64 - 

Total Expenditure 8,312.76 381.46 

Profit/(loss) before tax and Exceptional item (7,447.12) (381.46) 

Less: Exceptional item - - 

Profit before tax (7,447.12) (381.46) 

Less: Current Tax - - 

Less: Deferred tax - - 

Profit (Loss) for the period (7,447.12) (381.46) 

Earnings per share   

Basic (1.51) (0.07) 

Diluted (1.51) (0.07) 

 

For further details, kindly refer to the Financial Statements forming part of this report. 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS/ PERFORMANCE  

 

Due to adverse business conditions, the Company has not undertaken any business activity during the year under 

review.  

 

The amount of Total Expenditure including professional and other expenses sums out to be Rs. 8,312.76 

Thousand. Therefore, the Profit/Loss before and after tax, for the year under review, stood negative at Rs. 7,447.12 

Thousand as compared to the loss of Rs. 381.46 Thousand, incurred in the previous Financial Year 2022-2023.    

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The financial statements have been prepared as per the IND-AS prescribed by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI).  
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ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In terms of Section 134 (3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter to be referred to as Act) the Annual Return 

of the Company as on March 31, 2024, as referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 92 is available on the website 

of the Company at https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/   

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD 

 

The information in terms of Section 134(3)(b) of the Act is given below: - 

 

Dates for the Board Meetings are well decided in advance and communicated to the Board and the intervening 

gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The agenda and 

explanatory notes are sent to the Board in advance. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws 

applicable to the Company. 

 

During the year, 6 (Six) Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

 

Sr. No Date of Board Meeting 
No of Directors eligible 

to attend the Meeting 

No of Directors attended 

Meetings 

1 03/05/2023 4 4 

2 25/05/2023 4 4 

3 10/08/2023 4 4 

4 05/09/2023 4 4 

5 07/11/2023 4 4 

6 05/02/2024 4 4 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETING 

 

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 30, 2023, for 

the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023.   

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: -  

 

As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, your Directors state that: 

 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

b. the accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates made 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 

end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the said Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/
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d. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going-concern basis; 

e. the proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f. the proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

 

In terms of Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013, there are no frauds reported by auditors under sub-

section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which are required to be mentioned in the 

Director’s Report.  

 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of meeting the criteria of independence provided under Section 149(6) of the said Act. The 

Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Director 

in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion 

that the Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible 

to act as Independent Directors. 

 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, skills, 

experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. 

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:  

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, framed a policy for selection 

and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and their remuneration.  The salient 

features of the Policy are:  

 

i. It lays down the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for 

appointment of a director (executive/non-executive/independent) of the Company; 

 

ii. To recommend to the Board the policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and Senior 

Management/Other Employees of the Company; and 

 

iii. Reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the executive 

Directors, evaluating their performance in light of those goals and  objectives and either as a committee or together 

with the other independent Directors (as directed by the Board), determine and approve executive Directors’ 

compensation based on this evaluation; making recommendations to the Board with respect to KMP and Senior 

Management compensation and recommending incentive-compensation and equity-based plans that are subject  

to approval of the Board. 
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During the year under review, there has been no change to the Policy.  The Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

of the Company is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the following web link: 

https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/.  

 

AUDITORS REPORT 

 

i. Statutory Audit Report: - 

 

M/S V. R. Bansal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 016534N), is being re-appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company at the ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting scheduled for Monday, 

September 30, 2024, for the Second term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting. The Auditors’ Report being self-

explanatory, requires no comments from the Directors. Further, there are no reservations, qualifications, 

disclaimers or adverse remarks in the Audit Reports issued by them in respect of the Financial Statements 

of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

ii. Secretarial Audit Report: - 

 

M/s Parveen Rastogi & Co., Practicing Company Secretary having CP No. 26582 and Membership No. 

F4764 was appointed by the Board of Directors as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial 

year under review pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has provided all 

assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting 

their audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 is annexed as ‘Annexure 

A’ and forms part of this report.  

 

The observations of the secretarial auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, the directors 

do not have any further comments to offer on the same. 

 

iii. Internal Auditor:- 

 

The internal auditor of the Company is M/s G.M. & Co., Chartered Accountants who was appointed for 

the financial year 2023-24 in accordance to Section 138 of the Companies Act, read with Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and carried out the roles and responsibilities which are as follows: 

• Evaluated and provided reasonable assurance that risk management, control, and governance 

systems are functioning as intended and will enable the organization’s objectives and goals to be 

met. 

• Reported risk management issues and internal controls deficiencies identified directly to the audit 

committee and provided recommendations for improving the organization’s operations, in terms 

of both efficient and effective performance. 

• Evaluated information security and associated risk exposures. 

• Evaluated regulatory compliance program with consultation from legal counsel. 

 

https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/
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iv. Cost Audit:- 

 

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 

186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Act, there were no Loans, Guarantees and Investments which covered under 

the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.  

 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER 

SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

All related party transactions that were entered by the Company during the financial year 2023-24 were on arm’s 

length basis and in ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 were not attractive. 

 

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review which may have 

a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, the Disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required. 

However, the details of all Related Party Transaction have been disclosed in Note 16 of the Financial Statements 

of the Company. 

 

RESERVES:  

 

No amount was transferred to the Reserves under the head “Other Equity” in the Balance Sheet during the year 

under review.  

 

Further, no amount has been transferred or proposed to be transferred to any other reserves.  

 

DIVIDEND 

 

Considering the financial business and adverse business conditions, your Directors have decided to not to 

recommend any amount for declaration of Dividend for the year under review. Hence, information required in 

terms of Section 134(3)(k) of the Act is Nil.  

 

The provisions regarding the formulation of Dividend Distribution Policy were not applicable to the Company.  

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 

COMPANY TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT 
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There are no material changes or commitments effecting the financial position of the Company happening in 

between the end of the Financial Year 2023-24, to which the Financial Statements relate, and the date of this 

Report.  

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The details of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as 

follows: 

 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

1.  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Not applicable as 

the Company has 

not carried out any 

business activity. 

2.  the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of 

energy 

3.  the capital investment on energy conservation equipment 

 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

The Company has not carried out any research and development activities. Accordingly, the information 

related to technology absorption is not applicable to your Company. 

 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

 

During the year under review, the Company neither had any Foreign exchange earnings nor incurred any 

Foreign Exchange Expenditure.  

 

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

POLICY IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(n) OF THE ACT 

 

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has formulated and adopted a Risk 

Management Policy that covers a formalized Risk Management Structure, along with other aspects of Risk 

Management i.e. Credit Risk Management, Operational Risk Management, Market Risk Management and 

Enterprise Risk Management. The Risk Management Policy approved by the Board acts as an overarching 

statement of intent and establishes the guiding principles by which key risks are managed across the organization. 

Directors are overall responsible for identifying, evaluating, and managing all significant risks faced by the 

Company. 

 

THE DETAILS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR IN TERMS 

OF SECTION 134(3)(o) OF THE ACT: -  

 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to our Company. 
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A STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF 

THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS HAS 

BEEN MADE IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(p) OF THE ACT READ OVER WITH RULE 8(4) OF 

THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014: - 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, in consultation with its Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee, has put in place a framework containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance 

evaluation of the entire Board of Directors of the Company, its Committees and Individual Directors, including 

Independent Directors. Accordingly, the following is the criteria for evaluation: - 

 

a) Criteria for evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole: 

i. The Frequency of Meetings 

ii. Quantum of Agenda  

iii. Administration of Meetings 

iv. Flow and quantity of Information from the Management to the Board 

v. Number of Committees and their role.  

vi. Overall performance of the Company 

vii. Engagement in Corporate Governance, ethics and compliance with the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

b) Criteria for evaluation of the Board Committees: 

i. Appropriateness of size and composition 

ii. The Frequency of Meetings 

iii. Quantum of Agenda  

iv. Administration of Meetings 

v. Flow and quantity of Information from the Management to the Committee  

vi. Role of Committees.  

vii. Contribution to the decision-making process of the Board. 

 

c) Criteria for evaluation of the Individual Directors including Independent Directors;  

i. Experience and ability to contribute to the decision-making process 

ii. Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management 

iii. Attendance and Participation in the Meetings 

iv. Personal competencies as per Chart given in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and 

contribution to strategy formulation 

v. Contribution towards statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate Governance 

vi. The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall 

include: - 

(a) Performance of the directors; and 

(b) fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 

Regulations and their independence from the management: 

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not 

participate 
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The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board 

and while doing so, the Director subject to evaluation shall not participate. On the basis of 

performance evaluation done by the Board, it will be determined whether to extend or continue 

their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires. 

 

Moreover, the performance evaluation is also based on the terms as specified by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee as per the PART D of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES AND 

THEIR CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW  

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Associate Company or a Joint Venture. Further, no 

company has become or ceased to be the Company’s Subsidiary or Associate during the year under review. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & ITS ADEQUACY 

 

There are adequate internal control procedures which commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of 

its business for the purchase of inputs, availing of services, fixed assets, for the sale of goods and providing of 

services. Full-fledged Internal Audit department carries out pre and post audit of all significant transactions 

throughout the year. Based on the Annual Internal Audit program as approved by Audit Committee of Board, 

regular internal audits are conducted. The company has also appointed M/s GM & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

New Delhi (outsourced) as Internal Auditor before Audit Committee, which reviews and discuss the actions taken 

with the Management. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF COMPANY’S BUSINESS 

 

There is no change in the nature of Company’s business during the year under review.  

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR 

HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 

 

DIRECTORS 

 

The Directors in the Company as on 31.03.2024 are as follows: - 

 

Sr. No. DIN Name of Director Designation 

1.  00106272 Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain Whole Time Director 

2.  03031419 Mr. Ashish Jain Independent Director 

3.  03267887 Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Director 

4.  08438613 Ms. Vasudha Jain Independent Director 
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o Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (DIN: 03267887), who was liable to retire by rotation, is being re-appointed as 

Director by the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled for 

September 30, 2024. Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles 

of Association of the Company, Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272), Director of the Company retire 

by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

The Brief Resume and other details relating to the Director who is proposed to be re-appointed on 

retirement by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, as required to be disclosed 

under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulations forms part of the Notice 

of Annual General Meeting. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):  

 

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 

as on 31.03.2024 are as follows: -  

 

Sr. No. Name of KMP Designation 

1.  Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain Whole Time Director 

2.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Chief Financial Officer 

3.  Ms. Divya Mittal  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

There was no change (appointment or cessation) in the office of KMPs during the year under review. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year under review in terms of 

Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY`S OPERATIONS IN 

FUTURE 

 

The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any Regulatory Authority, Court or 

Tribunal which shall impact the going concern status and Company`s operations in future. As such, the 

information in terms of Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is nil. 

 

DISCLOSURE AS TO COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 

 

The Company does not fall within the purview of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence, it is not 

required to appoint a cost auditor and to maintain any cost records for the financial year 2023-2024 and 

accordingly such accounts and records are not maintained by the Company. 

 

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
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Although the provisions related to the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are not applicable to our 

Company, however it may please be noted that there have been no complaints under this Act during the year under 

review. 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

 

There are no applications made or proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 in 

relation to the Company and therefore, information as required under Rule 8(5)(xi) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 for the year under review  is not applicable to our Company. 

 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

 

There was no one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution by the Company during the year under 

review. 

 

DECLARATIONS ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT BY DIRECTORS AND THE 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

The Company is committed to conducting its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and 

regulations and with the highest standards of business ethics. Company’s Code of Ethics is intended to provide 

guidance and help in recognizing and dealing with ethical issues, mechanisms to report unethical conduct and to 

help foster a culture of honesty and accountability. The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors, Senior 

Management and other Employees of the Company.  

 

The Declaration in terms of Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 by the Whole Time Director of the Company stating that members of the Board of Directors 

and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and 

senior management is annexed to this report as ‘Annexure B’. 

 

REVIEW OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS  

 

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable 

to the Company, as prepared and placed before it by the Management. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

(A) Authorised Share Capital:  
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The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024, stands at Rs. 1,20,00,000/- (divided 

into 1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each). During the year, there has been no change in the 

Authorized Share Capital of the company.  

 

(B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid –Up Share Capital 

The Issued, Subscribed, and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024, stands at Rs. 

49,28,500/- (divided into 49,28,500 Equity Shares of Re. 1/ each). 

 

(C) Issue of Shares with Differential Rights 

The Company has not issued any shares with Differential Rights during the year under review. 

 

(D) Issue of Sweat Equity Share 

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity shares or Employee Stock Options during the year under 

review. 

 

UTILIZATION OF FUNDS  

 

The Company has not raised any funds through issue of any securities during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provision of Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dealing with Corporate Governance 

conditions, as its equity share capital is less than Rs.10 Crores and Net Worth is not exceeding Rs. 25 Crores, as 

on the last day of the previous financial year.  

 

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 

ACCOUNT 

 

There is no demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account of the Company because such a requirement 

never got necessitated in relation to the shares of the Company. As such, the information in this regard is nil. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTED ENTITIES 

 

This is not applicable to our Company as the Company has not entered into any type of agreement as specified 

under Clause 5A of paragraph A of part A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINIBILITY REPORT 

 

Regulation 34 (2) (f) of the SEBI  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not 

applicable to the Company because the Company is not among top 1000 listed entities based on market 

capitalization as on 31st March, 2023 who are required to submit the Business Responsibility and Sustainability 

Report. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Part B of Schedule V 

to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 is presented in a separate section as ‘Annexure C’, forming part of this Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMPs/EMPLOYEES: - 

 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 

Rule 5(1), 5 (2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 are as under:  

 

Rule Particulars 

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to 

the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company for the financial year 2023-24 

Name of Director Ratio 

Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director)  

Nil 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Nil 

Mr. Ashish Jain  Nil 

Ms. Vasudha Jain  Nil 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary in the 

financial year 2023-24 

Name of Director/KMP Percentage 

Increase 

Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director) 

Nil 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Nil 

Mr. Ashish Jain  Nil 

Ms. Vasudha Jain  Nil 

Ms. Divya Mittal  Nil 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median 

remuneration of employees in the financial year 

2023-24. 

Nil  

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls 

of the company. 

Nil  

 The explanation on the relationship between 

average increase in remuneration and Company’s 

performance 

Not Applicable, since there has been no increase 

in the Remunerations  

(v) Average percentile increases already made in the 

salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 

Not Applicable to the Company, as all the 

employees are under Managerial cadre. 
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circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration 

(vi) The key parameters for any variable component 

of remuneration availed by the directors. 

Any variable component of remuneration payable 

to the Directors is based on the parameters, as 

approved by the Board of Directors, on the basis 

of the recommendation of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee of the Board. The said 

parameters are set considering the provisions of 

applicable regulations, Nomination (including 

Boards’ Diversity), Remuneration and Evaluation 

Policy of the Company and the respective 

resolution(s) of the Members of the Company, as 

applicable 

(vii) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid 

director to that of the employees who are not 

directors but receive remuneration in excess of 

the highest paid director during the year 

During the year under review, there is no 

employee in the Company who is not a director 

but receives remuneration in excess of the highest 

paid director i.e. Whole time Director of the 

Company. 

(viii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 

remuneration policy of the company 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as 

per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 

the Company.  

(ix) The statement containing particulars of 

employees as required under Section 197(12) of 

the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

The information showing names and other 

particulars of employees as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) 

of the aforesaid Rules read with Section 197 (12) 

of the Act is given in the table below. 

 

Information showing names and other particulars of employees as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid 

Rules read with Section 197 (12) of the Act. 

 

Rule 5(2): 

 

Statement showing the names of the top ten employees in 

terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every 

employee, who- 

(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt 

of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was 

not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; 

(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in 

receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate 

which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and 

fifty thousand rupees per month; 

(iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part 

thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, 

Not Applicable 
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in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in 

the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing 

director or whole-time director or manager and holds by 

himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, 

not less than two percent of the equity shares of the 

company. 

 

 

 

 

Sr.  

No. 
Information 

Details 

1 2 3 

1 Name of Employee Mr. Satya Bhushan 

Jain 

Mr. Sudhanshu 

Saluja 
Ms. Divya Mittal 

2 Designation of the Employee 

Whole Time Director 
Chief Financial 

Officer 

Company Secretary 

& Compliance 

Officer 

3 Remuneration Received (Rs.) Nil Nil 1,64,000 

4 Nature of employment, 

whether contractual or 

otherwise 

Permanent Permanent Permanent 

5 Qualifications and experience 

of the employee 
B.Com Graduate B.Com Graduate 

B. Com, LLB and 

Company Secretary 

6 Date of commencement of 

employment 
March 13, 1995 May 27, 2021 May 20, 2019 

7 The age of such employee 70 Years 39 Years 40 Years 

8 The last employment held by 

such employee before joining 

the company 

NA NA 

Omega Brake 

Components Private 

Limited 

9 The percentage of equity 

shares held by the employee in 

the company within the 

meaning of clause (iii) of Rule 

5(2)  

1.36% 0.83% Nil 

10 Whether any such employee is 

a relative of any director or 

manager of the company and 

if so, name of such director or 

manager: 

No No No 
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

Pursuant to requirement under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has constituted various Committees of Board such as Audit Committee, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Your Directors wish to inform you that in Compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Audit 

Committee of the Board is duly constituted. The Audit Committee as on March 31, 2024 comprises of the 

following Directors: -  

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 

 

Further, all recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

The primary objective of the Committee is to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of 

transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee met four times during the year under 

review.  

 

During the financial year 2023-24, Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held, details of the same are 

under:  

 

Date of Meeting 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

25/05/2023 Yes Yes Yes 

10/08/2023 Yes Yes Yes 

07/11/2023 Yes Yes Yes 

05/02/2024 Yes Yes Yes 

 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

of the Board is duly constituted. As on March 31, 2024 the Committee comprised of the following Directors: - 

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall determine qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other employees.  

 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Committee met once. The details of the meetings held and the attendance 

there at of the Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as detailed herein below: 

 

Date of Meeting 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

10/08/2023 Yes Yes Yes 

 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee of the Board is duly constituted. As on March 31, 2024 the Committee comprised of the following 

Directors: - 

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Committee has met once in the year. The details of the meeting held and 

attendance there at of the Members of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as detailed herein below: 

 

Date of Meeting 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

07/11/2023 Yes Yes Yes 

 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING  

 

During the year, One Meeting of Independent Director’s was convened and held on January 31, 2024. The 

Independent Directors have handed over the proceedings of the meeting to the Whole Time Director of the 

Company: 

 

Date of Meeting 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain 

31/01/2024 Yes Yes 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct, if any. The details of 

the Whistle Blower Policy are posted on the website of the Company.  

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSHIPS: - 

Relations between the Management and the employees at all levels have been cordial and the Directors wish to 

express their appreciation for the cooperation and dedication of the employees of the Company.  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH LISTING REGULATIONS: - 

The equity shares of the company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The Company has in place the following 

Policies as required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015: - 

 

1. Code for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information pursuant to Regulation 8(1) of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

 

2. Policy on Criteria for determining Materiality of events/information’ under Regulation 30 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

The company has already paid listing fees for the Financial Year 2023-24 to BSE Limited. The said Fees for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 was paid duly within time. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company is following the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act. 

 

INSIDER TRADING: 

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 

of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The said Code has been posted on the Website of the Company 

www.bjduplexboard.com. Further, the Board has also adopted the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report 

trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate relatives in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider trading Code of the company lays down guidelines 

and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company, as well as 

the consequences of violation. The said codes were duly adhered to during the year under review. 

 

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

 

The Company’s equity shares are in compulsory Demat mode in terms of SEBI Guidelines. This has been 

facilitated through an arrangement with NSDL. About 18.73 % of the issued shares of the Company are in 

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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dematerialized form as per the latest shareholding pattern of the Company filed for June 2024 quarter. Beetal 

Financial & Computer Services Private Limited, New Delhi are acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 

acts as common agency and perform all activities in relation to share transfer facility as maintained by them in 

terms of Regulation 7 (2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Annual Report 2023-24 of the Company containing Standalone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash 

Flow Statement, other statements and notes thereto, prepared as per the requirements of Schedule III to the 

Companies Act, 2013, Directors’ Report (including Management Discussion and Analysis Report) is being sent 

via email to all shareholders who have registered their email address(es) with the Depositories/Company. Full 

version of the Annual Report 2023-24 is also available for inspection at the Registered office of the Company 

during working hours up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). It shall also be available at the 

Company`s website www.bjduplexboard.com, on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 

https://nsdl.co.in/.   

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s 

objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 

regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that 

could influence the Company’s operations include the status of the promoters, change in government regulations, 

tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as litigation and arrangement of funds. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

Your directors wish to place on record their gratitude and sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation 

received from financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors, and members during the 

year under review.  

 

Your directors would like to express a profound sense of appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees 

in supporting the Company in its continued robust performance on all fronts. 

 

  

By order of the Board of Directors 

For B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

 

 

 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 06, 2024 

Sd/- 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

Director 

DIN: 03267887 

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00106272 

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://nsdl.co.in/
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2023-24 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

H. NO.54 G/F NEW RAJDHANI ENCLAVE,  

NEAR MCD PARK, SHAHDARA 

EAST DELHI – 110092 INDIA 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate governance practices by B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”) 

having CIN L21090DL1995PLC066281. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
st March, 2024 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by B J 

DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED (the “Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according 

to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not 

Applicable to the Company as no Foreign Transactions has been done during the year under review) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015; 
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period.) 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period. 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021: (Not applicable during the financial year under review). 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

 

Compliances/processes/systems under other specific applicable Laws (as applicable to the industry) to the 

Company are being verified on the basis of periodic certificate under Internal Compliance System submitted to 

the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, I have relied on information/records produced by 

the Company during the course of  audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

• Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on meetings of the Board 

of Directors and General Meetings. 

• Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

 

During the period under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  

 

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax 

laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 

 

I FURTHER REPORT THAT 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted on the Board. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.  

 

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were 

unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.  

 

I FURTHER REPORT THAT 

• There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 

the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

• We further report that during the audit period there was no event/action having a major bearing on the 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

 

• Revocation of suspension of securities of the Company from the Bombay Stock Exchange w.e.f 3rd April, 

2024 

 

• Forfeiture of 2,52,700 partly paid-up equity shares of the Company, approved in the Board meeting held 

on 3rd May, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi                                                                                                                        

Date: September 04, 2024                                                                                                      

For PARVEEN RASTOGI & Co. 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 

PARVEEN RASTOGI 

C.P. NO. – 26582 

M. NO.- 4764 

Peer Review Certificate No: 5486/2024 

UDIN: F004764E000946441 
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To, 

The Members, 

B J Duplex Boards Limited 

H.NO: 54 G/F New Rajdhani Enclave,  

Near MCD Park, 110092 India. 

 

‘Annexure A’ 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis of my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy of effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi                                                                                                                        

Date: September 04, 2024                                                                                                      

For PARVEEN RASTOGI & Co. 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 

PARVEEN RASTOGI 

C.P. NO. – 26582 

M. NO.- 4764 

Peer Review Certificate No: 5486/2024 

UDIN: F004764E000946441 
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‘ANNEXURE B’ 

 

DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

 

I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel, as approved by the Board, for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Delhi  

Date: September 06, 2024 

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain  

Whole Time Director  

DIN:00106272 
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ANNEXURE-‘C’ TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

As per Regulation 34(2) (e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is as follows: 

 

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT 

 

❖ GLOBAL PAPER INDUSTRY:  

 

The global paper products market has experienced robust growth in recent years and is set to continue this 

trend. In 2023, the market size reached $1,059.15 billion and is projected to grow to $1,134.94 billion in 

2024, representing a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.2%. This growth can be attributed to the 

rising demand for packaging paper from retail companies and increasing awareness of sustainable 

practices. 

 

Looking ahead, the market size is expected to expand further, reaching $1,474.93 billion by 2028 at a 

CAGR of 6.8%. The forecasted growth is driven by rapid technological advancements and escalating 

demand from the e-commerce sector. Key trends anticipated during this period include the adoption of 

3D printing, the integration of artificial intelligence, a surge in acquisition activities, the utilization of 

recycled materials to create recyclable products, and a heightened focus on sustainability. 

 

Drivers of Growth 

 

1. Packaging Paper Demand: The future growth of the paper products market is significantly propelled by 

the increased utilization of packaging-grade paper. This category encompasses various types of paper 

specifically employed in the packaging sector. The heightened demand from diverse end-use industries, 

growing consumer awareness about sustainability, and the imperative for eco-friendly packaging 

contribute to the rising demand for paper products. For instance, in July 2022, EUWID Europäischer 

Wirtschaftsdienst GmbH, an independent trade press publisher based in Germany, reported a 7.1% 

increase in the production of packaging-grade paper in 2021 compared to 2020, marking the highest level 

ever recorded in Europe. 

 

2. Economic Growth: The market for paper product manufacturing is poised to benefit from consistent 

economic growth projected for both developed and developing countries. According to the International 

Monetary Fund (IMF), global GDP growth reached 3.3% in 2021 and was forecasted to be 3.4% in 2022. 

The recovery of commodity prices is anticipated to be a significant factor in driving economic growth. 

The US economy is projected to experience stable growth during the forecast period, and emerging 

markets are expected to grow slightly faster than developed markets. This anticipated economic growth 

is likely to drive investments, joint ventures, and foreign direct investments in end-user markets, fostering 

market growth throughout the forecast period. 

 

Strategic Investments and Market Expansion 
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Major companies in the paper products market are strategically focusing on investments to expand their 

global presence, access new markets, diversify their customer base, and mitigate supply chain risks. Such 

investments often lead to increased production capacity, enabling manufacturers to effectively meet the 

growing demand for paper and related products. 

 

 

 

❖ INDIAN PAPER INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:  

 

The Indian paper industry is currently facing a significant challenge due to the influx of imported paper. 

Recent data from the Directorate General of Commercial Intelligence & Statistics (DGCI&S) reveals that 

the volume of paper and paperboard imports in India has seen a dramatic increase. Imports surged from 

1.145 million metric tons (MT) in 2021-22 to 1.436 million MT in 2023-24, and further escalated to 1.929 

million MT in 2023-24. This represents a staggering growth of over 68% in just two years. 

 

A closer examination of the import sources highlights a particularly concerning trend. Imports from China 

have skyrocketed by 181% over the past two years, while those from ASEAN countries have surged by 

an astonishing 247%. The duty-free import of paper into India has rendered domestic paper production 

uncompetitive, posing a serious threat to the sustainability of the Indian paper industry. 

 

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS ANALYSIS OF THE INDIAN PAPER INDUSTRY: 

 

THREATS:    

• Significant increase in imports, particularly from China and ASEAN countries, making it challenging 

for local manufacturers to compete. 

• Fluctuating raw material prices impacting production costs and profitability. 

• Stricter environmental regulations increasing compliance costs. 

• Decline in demand for traditional printing and writing paper due to digitalization. 

• Economic uncertainties affecting demand and investment in the paper industry. 

• Supply chain disruptions due to geopolitical tensions and global trade issues. 

OPPORTUNITIES: 

• Adoption of advanced technologies and sustainable practices to enhance efficiency and meet eco-

friendly product demand. 

• Expansion into niche markets such as specialty papers for medical and food packaging applications. 

• Rising domestic demand for packaging materials driven by the growth of e-commerce and retail 

sectors. 

• Potential for government support and incentives to strengthen domestic manufacturing and counter 

import challenges. 

• Exploring export opportunities with competitive pricing and high-quality products. 
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C. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 

 

The Company operated in only one business segment i.e. Paper/ Paper board (including Duplex Board) at 

New Delhi. Moreover, at present the Company is not operative and thus and have any active business 

engagements.  

 

D. OUTLOOK:  

 

The global economy is expected to rise from 1.6 percent in 2023 to 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 

2025—will be offset by a modest slowdown in emerging market and developing economies from 4.3 percent 

in 2023 to 4.2 percent in both 2024 and 2025. The forecast for global growth five years from now—at 3.1 

percent—is at its lowest in decades. Global inflation is forecast to decline steadily, from 6.8 percent in 2023 

to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025, with advanced economies returning to their inflation targets 

sooner than emerging market and developing economies. Core inflation is generally projected to decline more 

gradually. 

 

E. RISKS AND CONCERNS:  

 

• Demand risk: Preferential shift of consumers towards digitisation could hinder demand. 

• Regulatory risk: Non-compliance with statutory norms could attract penalties and impact the 

Company’s credit rating. 

• Resource risk: Overuse of water along with a substandard water discharge can harm resource security 

and respect. 

• Raw material risk: Scarcity in essential raw materials like wood, pulp, coal and chemicals could 

bring down output with profitability. 

 

F. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 

The Company has adequate internal control system for business processes, with regard to efficiency of 

operations, financial reporting and controls, compliance with applicable laws and regulations etc., clearly 

defined roles and responsibilities for all managerial positions have also been institutionalized. All operating 

parameters are monitored and controlled. Regular internal audits and checks ensure that responsibilities are 

executed effectively. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically reviews the adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for strengthening these.  

 

G. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE: 

 

This has been dealt with in the Directors’ Report. 

 

H. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, 

INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 
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Since, there were no material developments in human resources / industrial relations front, including number 

of people employed during the year under review therefore, this provision is not applicable to the Company.    

 

I. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E., CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO 

THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

No significant changes took place in the key financial ratios of the Company; therefore, this provision is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

 

J. DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE 

IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION 

THEREOF. 

 

The company has been facing financial challenges from past few fiscal years, reporting losses in such financial 

years. Due to no good/profitable track record in the Company, therefore there were no/negative returns on the 

Net Worth of the Company and no change in return on net worth compared to the immediately previous 

financial year.   

 

K. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 

There has been no change in the accounting policies during the period under review. However, from April 

1st, 2019, the provisions relating to IND-AS shall be applicable on the Company. 

 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 

projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of 

future events. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could 

make a difference to the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand supply conditions, finished 

goods prices, raw material cost and availability, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic 

developments within India and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations. The Company assumes no 

responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 

developments, information or events. 
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CERTIFICATION BY THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF 

THE COMPANY 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

We, the undersigned, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

 

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024, and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact or contains 

statement that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

We also certify that based on our knowledge and the information provided to us, there are no transactions entered 

into by the Company, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

The Company’s other certifying officers and we are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls 

for financial reporting and procedures for the Company and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s 

internal controls and procedures pertaining to financial reporting. 

 

The Company’s other certifying officers and we have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation, wherever 

applicable, to the Company’s auditors and through them to the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of 

Directors: 

• All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which we are aware and have 

taken steps to rectify these deficiencies; 

• Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year: 

Any fraud, for which we have become aware of and that involves Management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over financial reporting; 

• Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 06, 2024 

 

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00106272 

 

Sd/- 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

Chief Financial Officer 
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B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

CIN: L21090DL1995PLC066281 

H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park, New Delhi, 110092, India 

Tel No.- 41410139  

Email Id- sbj@anandpulp.com Website: - www.bjduplexboard.com  
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